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TRAINING NEEDS IN GERONTOLOGY

| THURSDAY, JUNE 21. 1973

U.S. SENATE,
Serciat COMMITTEE ON AGING,
Washington, D.C.

The committee met, pursuant to vecess, at 10 aan. in room 1518,
Dirksen Scnate Office Building, Senator Lawton Chiles presiding,

Present : Senators Chiles, IF'ong, and Gurney.

Also present: William E. Oriol, staff director; David Affeldt, chief
counsel; Deborah Kilmer, professional staftf member; Johin Guy Miller.
minority staff director; Robert M. M. Seto, minority counsel; Patri-
cia Oriol, chief clerk: Gerald Strickler. printing assistant; and Ann
Todaro, clerk.

Senator CriLes. We will reconvene our hearings.

Mr. Kurzman, I would like to thank you and your colleagues for
appearing before the comnmittee to describe the administration’s policy
pertaining to training in the field of aging.

I would also like to note that Dr. Arthur Flemming was sworn in
as U.S. Commissioner on Aging just 2 days age. Dr. Flemming, I will
repeat what has already been said to you so often before: The Nation
is fortunate that a man of ysur stature and complete dedication has
decided to lead the Administration on Aging at a challenging time in
its development. It isa pleasure to have you here today.

Dr. Freayina. Thank you very much.

OPENING STATEMENT BY SENATOR LAWTON CHILES, PRESIDING

Senator CurLes. A< you are aware, the committee conducted a hear-
ing earlier this weeii. Representatives from gerontological programs
at colleges and universities testified. I was very impressed with the
interest and enthusiasm of these witnessss, particularly the students,
who explained what would happen to their aging program and their
personal careers if the administration’s proposal to “phase out™ train-
ing funds for aging programs were implemented. The witnesses agreed
that their aging programs would be seriously curtailed. Ir one in-
stance, the entire p1ogram would probably be terminated.

Dr. Albert Wilson. director of the aging studies program at the Uni- .
versity of South Florida. said that if the Federal fuinding is phased
out, the program will not attract the “second-carcer” students who
make up a large percentage of their program. The cutofl would seri-
ously curtail the capacity of the program to give technical assistance
to the developing community programs which the university now as-
sists. Stndents accompanying Dr. Wilson testified that without the help

(95)
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of Federa! stipends they would have to forego theiv commitinent to the
field of gerontology or would have to attend conrses part time and be
detained in obtaining their degree.

Piuiase OQur TraiNving Foxnns

The suddenness of the administration’s decisien to phase out these
training funds “allowed no way for universities to respond with alter-
native means of maintaining their programs,” according to Dr. Walter
Beattic, director of the All-University Gerontology Center at Syracuse
TTniversity. Dr. Beattie went on to say that “for many programs the
result of this sudden withdrawal of support is the eradication of a
number of gerontology training programs throughout the United
States and the serious weakening of all such programs.” Dr. Beattie
was testifying not only for his prograin at Syracuse but on behalf of
the Association for Gerontology in Higher Edneation which represents
26 university aging programs,

The second half of our hearing concentrated on the importance of
training programs to minority aged. Dr. Percil Stanford, divector of

the Center on Aging at California State University in San Diego said:

There are too few persons trained to work with older people in general, and
there is an even greater need for trained persons to serve a variety of cthuic
and other minority older people. If persons are going to be trained in auy way to
work with older people, they should have the appropriate knoweldge to be effec-
tive with whatever culturally different persons they arve serving.

Student loans that are proposed by the administration as alterna-
tives to the training grants, in Dr. Stanford’s view. would be almost
useless to the minority student. Cultiral barriers wounld prevent these
persons from obtaining such loans, and “mauy banks are carefully
screening the persons who they wish or do not wish to receive sich
loans.” With no credit history themselves or within their family hack-
ground, it would be extrenmely difficult for these students to obtain a
loan,

Students from the Institute on Aging at Federal City College told
the committee that without Federal stipends they and most of the
students in their program “will have to drop out.” The stipend paid
for their tuition plus related expenses such as textbooks, transporta-
tion, and so forth. One of the students stated that she feit “an obliga-
tion to make a contribution in bettering their lot (clderly).” Without
the support from Federal funds, she would have not been able to ob-
tain the degree to satisfy her goal to work for the needs of the aging.

PrrsoNNFL DESPERATELY NEEDED

Assessing the testimonies of these witnesses, as well as the expan-
sion of services under the Older Americans Act, it appears to me that
the need for personnel trained in the gerontology field is not only
desperately necded but is now suffering from the lack of speeialists in
the field. With services for the elderly increasing and the aged popu-
lation growing considerably, this gap between the number of services
and personuel to man these programs is dangeronsly wide. Many of
those already working with programs for the elderly have specialties
in other fields and never have had training in matters of the aged and



the aging process. In fact. one of the answers to my survey of geron-
tological programs said :

Tn most cases, services to older peoplie were not as effective as possibie because
of the individuals who were frequently dedlcated but untrained in the field of
gerontology. 'They were competent within their own speecialties, but their lack of
kuowledye of aging, both in terms of the processes and some of the problems re-
sulting from the processes of aging, limited their effectiveness in carrying out
their responsibitlities.

In my opinion, it is essential for this country to establish and oper-
ate programs which are sound and effective in meeting the needs of
our elderly and this means supplying snfficient manpower to staff the
services our legislation ereates.

Senator Fong, do you have astatement, ?

Senator Foxa. Mr, Chairman, T have no statement.

I ain very interested to hear the testiino: 1y of Mr. Kurzman and Mr.
Flemming. T want to welcome themn to the cominittee.

\enafm Curres. Senator Gurney ¢

Senator GurNry. No statement.

Senator Cinines. Mr. Kurzman. we wonld new like to have your
testimony.

STATEMENT OF STEPHEN KURZMAN, ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR
LEGISLATION, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND
WELFARE; ACCOMPANIED BY HON. ARTHUR S. FLEMMING,
COMMISSIONER, ADMINISTRATION ON AGING; HON. JOHN ZAFPP,
DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH; AND GERALD D.
LaVECK, PH. D., DIRECTOR, NATIONAL INSTITUTE CF CHILD
HEALTH AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT

Mr. Kurzaan, Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We are very pleased to
have this opportunity to appear before you and your committee today.
I would like to introduce for the benefit of the comm; .ce each of the
associutes who are here with me today: Dr. Arthur S. Flemnming, yon
have already identified, to my mid-left, former Secretary of HEW,
and sworn in just 2 d.lys ag0, as you noted as Cominissioner of the
Admninistration on AmnOr on my mid- 11()nt is Dr. Gerald LaVeck..
who is Director of the National Institute of Child Health and Human
Development of the National Institutes of Health, also within HEW;
on his right is Dr. John Zapp, who is Depaty Assistant Secretary f01
Legislation (Health),

We have with us foday, and available to answer questions as well.
Dr. Clark Tibbitts who is Director of Training in the Administration
of Aging; ! Dr. LeRoy Duncan who is Chief of the Adult Develop-
ment and Aging Branch of the National Institute of Child Health and
Human Dovolopment, and Mr. Richard Rowe, who is Deputy Director
of the Division of Stndent Assistance in the Office of Tducation.

Variery oF Career Croics

Mr. Chairman, in answer to some of the comments you have made
about the witnesses who have testified emhel, the President’s 1974
budget request, we feel, together with cectain administrative actions,

1 Sce prepared statelnent, app. 2, item 1, p. 166.
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lays the groundwork for increased involvement by the educational
community in the field of aging. We feel the administration strategy
and proposal here makes 1t possible for both undergraduates and
araduate students to make eareer choices among a variety of cate-
gorical programs and with institutions which provide inducements to
those students to answering the special field.

We helieve a student choiee policy will permit them to make a chotce
among a variety of fields and many of them will continue to choose
and we think in greater numbers in view of the increased funding you
have referred to in service programs which the administration and the
Congress have proposed and are about to implement,

The new policy you are proposing wonld phase out this set of al-
most a half dozen very speeific categorvieal training programs, Jirected
not. toward student aid but first ioward the institutions which can
offer aid to students in these narrow fields: Social work, vocational
rehabilitation, aging, and other sozial services and most health-related
disciplines.

Of conrse, this committee is most interested in the impact of this
policy proposal on the field of aging alone. T want to point out it is a
proposal we are making in a number of fields. includin s aging. to move
to student aid rather than institutional. Again, at the outset and con-
sistent. with what you have heard from other witnesses. we do believe
there will be an accounting and increasing demand for persons who
have completed both undergraduate and graduate programs to enable
them to help operate programs in the field of aging. We have indi-
cated, not only the Older Americans Act. expansion of service pro-
arams, hut the new supplemental security income program which was
enacted as part of the Social Security amendments of 1972, This de-
mand will be met in our view only as educational institutions which
are now involved in the field of aging strengthen the programs as
new ones decide to make the commitment in this field.

The President’s 1974 bndget, when coupled with administrative
actions which will be described later in this testimony. is designed to
encourage the involvement of the educational community in the field
of aging. This encouragement will be provided through increased
student aid. strengthened research and demonstration programs. the
development of comprehensive and coordinated cervice programs. and
the provision of other training opportunities.

StTopenT FIinancian INcENTIVES

First of all, let us look at the area of student aid. Under a policy
of Federal support of categorical fraining programs. students often
make carcer decisions on the basis of which program provides the most
attractive financial incentives. Once the program has been completed
there is no assurance that the student will continue to work 1in the
field for which he has been trained.

The administration believes that this Nation should do everything
possible to remove the financial problem as a barrier to tha pursuit of
educational goals in the field of higher education. in these half a dozen
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fields. 1t Lelieves that substantial progress toward the achievement of
sueh a goal can be made throngh a Federal general student assistance
program, publie and private scholarship and loan programs, and work
programs——which at times may be subsidized in part by public funds
ana family savings.

Consistent with this policy the President’s 1974 bud«et proposed
full funding for a new prograum of basic opportunity grants for under-
graduate edueation authorized hy the Iiducation Amendments of 1972
and provided for work study funds and guaranteed and snbsidized
student loans for both undergraduate and graduate training in general
through the student choice inechanism which I have mentioned.

We believe that in total, this represents an inerease of $300 million
m additional Federal student aid over the amount spent in fiscal year
1973, The Congress changed the mixture of aid but. concurred with the
adimiistration’s propo.@eﬁ Increase.

As a result of the combined action proposed by the President and
maodified by the Congress, it is estimated that during the academic
vear 1974, this proposal in the budget represcats an inerease of $500
million, one-half million dollars in addition and 400,000 to 500,000
undergraduate students will recetve %122 million under the basic op-
portunity grants program; that approximately 1 million undergrad-
nates and graduate students will receive guaranteed student loans
with many of the undergraduates in this group also receiving basic
opportunity erants; that 560,000 undergraduate and graduate students
will be employed in work-study programs; and that 2,363 colleges and
universities will be in a position to make direct loans to approxi:nately
612000 undergraduate and graduate students. These Federal pro-
grams will, of course, be supplemented by public and private scholar-
ship and loan programs.

Frer Choicr or Cankens

Under this student aid policy—as contrasted with a policy of offer-
ing student stipends for the specific categorical programs—hoth under-
graduate and graduave students will receive assistance irrespective of
their career choices. This means that career choices will not be related
to solving immediate financial problems. Beginning next September,
400,000 students will be free to malke these c¢hoices on the basis of career
opportnnities and their own aptitnde, interests. and commitments.

Senator Foxa. What you are saying, Mr. Kurzman, is that instead
of saying this is « stipend for this particular work, a student will got.
2 basic opportunity grant and can choose whatever he wishes?

Mr. Kunzaan. That 1s correct, sir. :

Senator Foxe. And that the administration feels that by granting
stipends, you just funnel one man into one position whereas if yon
have a basic opportunity grant it gives all of the students who have
these grants the opportunity to go into every field and to take portions
of some fields?

Mr. Kurzyax. Exactly, Senator Fong. We think this is a much
more equitable way for Federal assistance which now, of course, is on
a much greater scale than the scales of the pre-existing narrow cate-
gorical vrograms in the half dozen specialized fields. Tt is much more

20-702—78—pt, 2——2
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equituble, in onr view, to distvibute the funds to students and permit
them to malke their career cholces as you have indicated.

What we think will come out of this is a great interest and a great
sense of commitment toward the field of aging among many students
who will see the demand that is there for trained personnel—a demand
that will increase immensely by reason of the great expansion that
the chairman has referred to in both the older Americans program and
the supplemental security income program-—so we have no_qualms
about where the trained -manpower will. in fact, emerge. We think
hey elearly will imder this program of siudent choices.

Senator Cuines. What malkes vou think that when you have a new
program and you are trying, in effect, to attract students to it? The
same thing applies to the logic of giving unfettered money. Tt made
sense to give the money back to the local police departments and let
them do what they wanted to. but we also decided we wanted to do
something important about drugs in the country. This is something we
need to attack specifically, and something all the way down through
the Tine, so we earmarked money for drugs. We put a special and co-
ordinating braneh into the resident office to coordinate the attack on
drugs. T though we were wrying to attack the problem of aging that
\\':ll\’, .
Now, you say we are just going to let it swim with all of the other
[rrograms?

INGREASED STUDENT AD

Mr. Kuenzman. Mr. Chairman, let me answer this two ways. Firsi
of all. we are talking abont very great increased student aid as com-
pared with the totals involved in the azing training programs which
we are seeking to phase out. The scale i3 just entirely different.

Seeond. we are not relying alone on {lie student aid program; we
are also relying on other factors which I have not yet gotten to in my
statement which we think will also tend to involve the institutions of
higher edncation, in the field of training for gerontology; so that we
are not leaving it entirely to chance, not by any means; the induce-
ments are clearly Jhere, where free choice is provided.

Senator Foxa. Ts it the feeling because there is a stipend there for
that particular stndy, that these students who need the financial help
choose it. but that does not necessarily mean they are very interested
in the particutar study ¢

Mr. Kunzaan. That is correct, Senator Fong. Tn part. we are talk-
ing about a number of fields of national intevest which do not have
specialized training programs.

What we have done through the accretion over the vears of these
half dezen very specific, very narrow training programs, without
going to specific institutions, than going seeking the stndent, is that
we have really skewered the pattern of aid in a disproportionate way.

Tt is not necessarily representing any demand factor at all; and in
fact, T do not know that it necessarily mnatches the Congress sense of
national priorities cither because many fields do not have specialized
training programs in which clearly the Congress and the administra-
tion together have great responsibility.

Senator Fong. As the committee is interested in the question of the
aging. naturally it is interested in seeing that aging training costs be
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provided, It you just give the money to students without funneling it
fo the institution. what would happen to the institutional program?
Mr. Xurzatan. We think the institutional program, Senator Fong,
will continue. In fact, they will have available to them resources m
%rez}t{%r amonnts than they have had under these narrow programs, as
said. -
Senator Cies. How !

REsEARCH AND DEMONSTRATION GRANTS

Mr. Kurzaran. What we are talking about is vesearch and develop-

. ment which we are séeking institutional participation. These institu-
tions can and shonld offer training opportunities for both undergradu-
ates and eraduates. Much of their mcome could derive from the re-
search and demonstration grants which the Administration on Aging
will be making to them; similarly, this is true_in the case of the
National Institute of Child Health and Human Development. i

Senator Fona. How does that tie into centers for aging studies
that now have the use of some research grants and special training
‘programs? )

Mr. Kurzaan. We anticipate, Senator, that those very same centers
will he participating in research and demonstration programs and
their students will be participating in the student aid program. If I
may, I would like to work tﬁrough this statement and then I think
perhaps you will see the pattern. )

Senator Gurney. Just one question on this part efore you leave it.

You made the statement, and I quote: “Cnce the programs have
been completed, there is no assurance the student will continue to
work in the field for which he has been trained.” _

To you have some statistics showing that he has been trained to do
a certain work in the field of gerontology and he has left it?

. Mr. Kurzaan. I do not know, Senator Gurnéy. We would be happy
to try to supply that for the record. v '

Senator GPURNEY. I wish yon would. That woula be useful inforina-
tion for us. . v .

Se};mtor Curres. Maybe Dr. Tibbitts could help us with that ques-
tion? S . :

Dr. Tisisrrrs. We are receiving the first results of an evaluation
gtudy made of the students who ‘have left our program through last
September. It appears through the preliminary results about 77 per-
cent of all who are employed now are in the field of aging.®

Senator GurNEY. Arein the field of what?

Dr. Tiserrts. Of aging, serving older people.

Senator CuvLes. Seventy-seven percent ?

Dr. Tisprrrs. Yes, of those who are working. .~

Senator Gurxgy. To put it another way, you have lost about 256
percent of those®. o S S

- Dr. Tiserrzs. On the surface, that appears to be right. We have not
lost that proportion, however. Quite a number return to school to work
toward & higher degree, usually a doctorate in gerontology.

E T C Senator CrivLes. That was 77 percent of all employed
ruum s See app. 2, item 1, p. 166, for prepared statement of Clark Tibbits, Director, Division
of Manpower Development, Adminfstration on Aging, Office of Human Development,

e JDepartment of Health Edqqntlnn' and Welfare. N
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Dr. Tissrrrs. Of all who are employed. Those who are employed
and those who are in school amount to 69 percent. of the total who left

school through last September.

Senator CrimLis. Well, would you furnish the committee statistics on
that so we conld get some feel for that?

My, Korzyan. The total number of stadents who left school through
September 1972 was 725. Iighty-three percent left by ¢ raduation ; the
remainder for a variety of other reasons. The distribution of those
who left for all reasons, acecording to employment status at the time of
the study in January 1973, was as follows:

Pereent

Employment status: datrivution
Employed, xerving older people wholly or pavtinldy o ___ (154
mployed, not serving older people_-. - —— - - 1%

In school seeking a higher degrec — _ - G
Seeking work —_— - - 8
Not in the labor foxvce e e —————e 4
Total - e o e e e e e - 10C

Thus, 69 pereent of the total number of students who completed or
left their programs for other reasous are employed in the field of aging
or have returned to school for & higher degree.

Eight porcent were locking for suitable employnient, principally
in the field of aging, . _

Approximately, one-half of the 19 pereent employed but not in the
field of aging had sought jebs in which they could serve older people.
‘They reported that they would return to the field of aging when a job
appropriate to their training appeared. = ,

StroNG INTEREST For AGED

-1t is of interest, also, thut Y6 percent ¢f t]ié_fotu] group reported that
they had had or ncquived through the training program a strong in-
terest in the gevontological field. ~

We believe that an inereasing numbey.of students, having been as-

- sured of assistance in removing financial barriers, will he chl]engod

by the rapidly unfolding career opportuiities in the field of aging and
will deeide to enter the field. In most instances these decisions will be
based on a strong commitment to the lield of aging rather than on the
conclusion that the financiul ussistance for a training program in aging
is more attractive than a training program in seme other area,

This trend in the direction of undergraduate and graduate students
deciding to enter the field of aging can be accelerated by developing
and making available to both undergraduate and graduate students
better information on carcer opportunities in the field -of aging and
better supply-demund data, The administration intends to take the

initiative In making such information available, o

In addition, undergraduate and graduate students wili be encout-
aged to enter the ficld of aging as a.result of steps that are being taken

to strengthen the Federal Government’s participation in research and’

demonstration program in the field of aging, = .
- In his message on: aging on March 23, 1972, the President said:
‘What we need is a comprchensive, coordinated research program, one which

includes diseiplines ranging from biomedical research to transpertation systems
analysis, g‘rom\psychol_ogy nn’d‘soclology{to Inanagement =cience and economies.

S
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In order to carry ont this Presidential mandate, the following steps
ave being taken:

(1) The Secretary of Health, Edueation, and Welfare, as Chairman
of the Cabinet-level Domestic Couneil on” Aging, and with th: con-
currence of the President, has nuthorized and directed the (lonnnis-
sioner on Aging to establish and to chair an interagency working
aroup in the field of aging. The primary uponsnln]lt\ of this group
will be to establish. wor king throngh the Cabinet-level committee, ob-
jectives and priorities for the use of the Govermment’s exis, ing anthori-
ties and resources in the field of aging, and to develop and nnpl( ment
across-the-board  action programs based on  these objectives and
Prioviies,

InreraceNey Task Forer

12) The Conmissioner on Aging, as chairman of this‘ working
;_"mup. will innmediately est: blish an inter rageney task force in the
area of research in aging which. under the divection of an exeentive
ehiatran will be ehary ‘r(»(l with the responsibility of establishing objee-
tives and priorities andl developing and implementing action programs
ta the broad area of aging researeh as defined by the President.

Some of the agencies that will he involved in the development of
this (nmpxehvnsl\v and coordinated vesearch program ealled for by
the President will be the following : The National Institate of ealth.
the National Institute of Mental Health. the National Center for
Health Services Research and Development, the Administration, on
Aging, the Social Security Administration. the Veterans' Adminis-
tration, the Department of Housing and Urban Development, the De-
partment of Transportation, the Atomic Energy Conunission, the
National Science 1<0und.lt10n. the National Aeronautics and Space
Administration. and the Taw Enforcement Assistance Administra-
tion,

Severa] examples serve to iliustrate the potential of this approacl.
The Administration on Agiang is slated to spend $7 million on research
and demonstration for fiseal year 1974 : the National Institute of (‘hlld
Health and Hmman Development has available in fiseal vear 1974
®11.8 million for research and training: the Atomie Iinergy Connnis-
sion spent $L5 million for aging-related research in 1973,

Senator CHILES. Tfmw did t thoy spend that money ?

Mr. Kurzamax. Dr. Flemming. perhaps von have some detail on
that?

Senator Cuires. T am afraid we are going to have to run for a vote.
The vote 1s in progress =0 we will have to vecess for about 5 minutes.

AFTER RECESS

Mr. Kurzman. T think where we broke, yon asked a question about
the 1]lustmt1\o reference to $4.5 ml]hon for the Atomic Fuergy Com-
mission spending to aging in research in fiscal year 1973 and T ‘had just
turned to Dr, T]emmm_«r on that.

Dr. Flemming, do you want to pick up?

Dr. Fumynoxa, The paragraph refers to a section of the report on
the administration’s response to the recommendations of the dele-
cates to the 1971 White Honse Conference on Aging and that is being
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attached as a part of the testimony.® [i does deseribe in some detail
what each one of these agencies is doing or contemiplates doing in fthe
field. With regard to the Atomic Inergy Commiission, it says:

The current research by the Atowice Fuerg: Commission is divected toward
the zoal of obtaiving « betier anderstanding of the effects of radiation on the
body over time, including the velationship to the degenerative provesses responsi-
hle for senescence.

It woes on to describe that in more detail and by saving the pro-
jected level of funding in fiscal voar 1973 for the support of vesearch
on aging at AlC-owned onsite laboratories and offsite contractor
Ineilities is $4.5 nillion. The same kind of information, M. (Chairman,
is provided in connection with each one of the ngeneies deseribed,

Mr, Kerzaran, The Veterans® Adaninisiration ix an iastration
where we spend nearly $15 million for rezeareh for aging in 1974

The nature and extent of the present and possible involvement of
these agencies is set forth in a seetion entitled *\ veport on the ad-
ministration’s continuing response to the reconaendations of the
delegates to the 1971 White Honse Conference on Aging.” aund is at-
tached to this testimony 4 so that, with vour permisgion, it ean hecome
a part of the record of this hearing, '

PresioeNts Prociay OvrLINED

The President’s divective to develop a comprehensive and coordi-
nated research and demonstration program for the field of neing will
have the following results for colleaes and universities:

It will provide them with a clear pictvre ¢ f the Tederal Govern-
nent’s abjectives.

Tt will make clear how eaeh Federal department and ageney lits into
these objectives.

It will identify the sums availalle to the Federal departments and
agencies for research and demonstration programs in aging.

It swill gpell out the procedures to be followed by the eolleges and
universities that have the competency and the desire to participate
in the programs of one or nore of the n'vencies,

As a result, if a college or nniversity receives graunt= for partiei-
pation in one or more of the Federal Governtent™s recoarel progriams,
1t will have the following resnlts in the area of training for work in the
field of aging, ‘

The meuningful involvement of the college or uuiversity in this
aspect of the field of aging—with financial support from the Federal
Government—wil! capture the attention of both undergradnate and
graduate students and will help to attract them to the field of aging.

The budgets on which the grants will he based will provide for com-
pensating faculty members for that portion of their time spent on the
project or projects and will help, therefore. ta attract and retain schol-
ars in the field of gerontology.

The budgets on which the grants will be based will provide for in-
volving and compensating both undergraduate and gradnate studenis
for participation in the projects and will help, therefare, to provide

38ee app. 1, item 3, p. 151,
4 8ee app, 1, item 3, p, 151,
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them with vorthwhile learning experiences and additional financial
resourees.

Senator Crnves, How much are those grants going to be ?

My, Kunzaan. Well, we have tried to give a partial listing here,
Mr. Chairman, in the comment we were reading, it is only partial
because the interagency eroup has not yet actually pinned down all
of these but the ones that are pinned down are there and you see %7
million in fiscal 1974 for AoA pins $11.8 million for NICHD.

Senator Cruwes. Now, yon ave talking about this $4.5 mifiion the
AEC is going to spend ?

Mr. Kurzasran. We are talking about a sum of all of the agencies
listed, all of the participants in this interdepartmentsi effort to pull
together all of the aging related rescarch and demonstration funds
that the excentive branch hasavailable,

Acencies’ Parriciparion QuUESPIONED

Senator Crones, 1e Jooks ke somebody did w lot of research to go
to look at ali of the agencies to find out any area where that celates
to aging, steh as AEC; and now you are using that figure to say:
“Look, we are giving @ number of dollars in grants.” T do not see how
this will benefit training students or how this will henefit universities,
this $£.5 million AERCisgiven?

Mr. Korzyawn, Let me say two things. Clearly, the responsibility of
these other agencies involves an aspect of aging as we have indicated :
the ATLC is concerned with the effcets of radiation, and the effects of
radiation clearly have an important role in the process so this is why
they are conducting this kind of research.

Senator Cuines, This money is ,zoing to be spent. prior to any deci-

2

sion to change the other provisions of the grants; this is something
you reached ont and foum{. but that money will be spent. that vesearch
is going to go on. Nothing, no decision of any changeover Las infln-
enced ATSC to get into this field?

Mr. Kurzaran. I do not think that is quite fair, Mr. Chairman. I
wonld be happy to tinn to Dr. Flemming on this, who is, after all
woing to head this task force. The effort we are attempting to make
here is to see to it that the agencies, when they are working on relevant
aging research, make sure that it is pulled together in a coordinated
way. I do not think that is an irrelevant response at all.

I think it is a key to how we can bring this elemen: of the Federal
Government’s work which is clearly not incurable. It is agaim like
student naids, a whole different order of magnitude when vou add it
up from these nmrow categorical training grants programs we are
proposing to phase out.

Dr. Freasrine, Mr, Chairman, I appreciate your questions on this
because I think this can be a very important development in terms of
the involvement of the educational community in the field of aging.

You have listed here, I think, about 13 departments and agencies of
the Federal Government that have authority and resources for carry-
ing forward research programs in the field of aging. They have been.
hy and large, traveling their own paths as they have used these author-
ities and resources.
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By direction, we will bring them together and we will insist on the
developnient of common objectives. We will insist on the development
of priorities as among those objectives: we will insist on the develop-
ment of action progranss designed to carry ouf those chjectives, We will
insist on decisions and agreements s to the nmounts of money that
each ageney intends to put into these programs. This having been
accomphished. the information on ()l‘)jv(-l‘i\'es.'lyl'iuritios, progrims, and
the ngencies that are participating in the specifie program will he made
available to the educational comimunity.

“Ax Aerern-Urox Overany, Poey”

I will provide one focal point to “vhich the educational conmumity
can turn so that-they will know when they can nimke application for
researeh and demonsty. tion grants and will know that in making those
applications that they are making them consistent with an agreed
upon overall policy.

These research and demonstration project applications will incor-
porate budgets for the operaticn of each one of the projects. Those
budgets can and will include sums of money to pay in part the mem-
bers of the faculty who will be participating in the project and they
can include snms of money to compensate both uudergraduate and
eraduate students. In so doing, they will have the op rortunity of par-
ticipating in a project relating to their educational oljectives and they
will also, of course, be given some assistance in connection with their
own individnal finzncial problems.

When this program is implemented. the colleges and universitios
that want to really become involved in the field of aging will have the
opportunity for applying, not for just one. hut in many instances, for
a number of projects. Consequently, the basis for thenr Federal sun-
port will be much broader in the field of aging than it i typically av
the present time.

I can say, going back to my days as president of the University of
Oregon, if I were presented with this Ikind of opportunity. I would
seize it quickly and eagerly because I would recognize that it was giv-
ing us an opportunity to became deeply involved in th: field of aging
with a broad basis of support from the Federal GGovernment rather
than having to depend on the ups and downs of just one particular
program.

Now. I think this has to he coupled with our discussion on student
aid because there is such o program for people who desire to pursue
work in the field of aging. Students can take advantage of it and T am
confident that they will. Tain also confident that an increasing number
of edueational institutions. if presented with this kind of an oppor-
tunity, will make further commitments to the field of aging and will
attract more and more nndergradnate and graduate students for par-
ticipation in their program.

T{ we pull all of this together and get it focused on'common objec-
tives and common priorities. Further. we will be making the most
intelligent and effective use of the resources that the Congress has ap- .
propriated. I personally feel that this kind of activity is long overdne.
both within the field of aging and in other fields. particularly as we
relate to the eduneational community of this country.
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Senator Cnivres. I think you have painted a very laudable goal and
laudable picture.

CnANNELING oF FuNDs

One concern 1 would have, though, when we are talking about Con-
gress und we are talking about control, I would rather sce the money
channeled by Congress directly spelled out than to have it where it s
going for aging and we label that and we know wiiat we are spending
in the now defined AIC in using $£.5 millior and that is not money
that Congress has spelled out to them to go for aging, for research
or for any of these other agencies and T think that is where the Con-
gress loses control over liow many dollars we are spending and maybe
under this, the dollars will be very great, maybe greater than Congress
wonld have directly appropriated but I do not know where the con-
trols come 1.

Mr. Kvrzacan, Mr, Chairman, if T ma. 7 think the Congress wil)
clearly have an opportunity and a respon..iwility ir passing on the
budeet justification and requests of cach of theoe agencies.

What we are trying to do is to identify funds, as Dr. Flemming hus
indicated in these other agencies and to determine if they are carrying
on logically. They have missions that relate clearly to the concerns
of aging in research and demonstration which has a very substantia}
impact on training.

We think that those agencies’ responsibilities will be focused by the
kind of interagency work that Dr. Flemming is going to head and
the Congress will have an opportanity for the first time to identify
what those agencies are doing related to aging. If Congress legislates
a specialized training program in addition to what these agencies are
doing, we are talking about duplication and very possibly waste. The
way to attack it is through the identification of the aging projects,
objectives, and priorities in all agencies. In this way, we think you will
have control and we will be accountable to the extent of developing
and coordinating common objectives of the aging programs in
agencies.

Senator Gurxey. This is an added new accountability that did not
exist before, is that o trect?

Mr. Korzaan, That is correct.

Senator Gurxey. An attempt to pin down and find out and define all
we are doing in the field of aging and put it under one common com-
mission so people can understand and see what we are doing?

CONGRESSIONAL InrteNT

Mr. Korzarax, Exactly. T think this was part of the intent of Con-
gress 1n creating the Administration on Aging in the first instance. As
you know, there is a great deal of language in the act which suggests
that the Administration on Aging should be doing this. What we are
trying to do is to put teeth into that directivi: of the Congress and, an
important step in this direction is the research and demonstration
areq.

Senator Foxe. Do I wnderstand you, as Commissioner of Aging,
will have this power? Will you be head of the interagency committee ?

20-702—T3—pt. 2 -3
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Dr. Frenmive, First of all, Senator Fong, the amendment to the
Older Asnericans Act places on the Commissioner of Aging responsi-
bility for coordination in the field of aging. In the second phase, the
President. a couple of years ago. established a Cabinct-level Commit -
tee on Aging and the Seeretary of HIEW is the chairuan of that com-
mittee, 'l‘hc%ecretary, with the cor »urrence of the President has indi-
cated that he expects me to set up and chair, as executive chairman,
an interagency group designed to coordinate all of the exeentive
branch’s activities in the field of aging. As Mr. Kurzman’s testimony
indicates, one of my first acts will be fo establish within that group a
task force to coordinate the Federal aging activity in the field of
research.

Senator Foxe. There is no question now, under the aunthority given
you by the act and by what the Secretury of Ilealth, Education,
and Welfare has done, that you have now the power in your office to
bring together all of these varions programs?

Dr. Freaniye. T have no doubt at all about the kind of assignment
that T have been given. I wonld like to say to you and Senator Chiles.
that as this assignment develops, I will be very happy to shave with
the appropriate committees of the Congress our activities—the kind
of identifications that we will make of authorities and responsibilities
on the part of other Federal departments and agencies, and the objec-
tives and priorities we have agreed upon. A complete overview will
lie given to the Congress, and it may lead to the Congress wanting to
make some changes.

My objective is tosce to it that the authorities and the resourees that
we now have are focused on specific objectives in the light of priorities
and that we get the best possible results ont of it for today’s older
people.

Senator Foxe. As a member of the Appropriations Commitice, 1
have been quite concerned by duplication of efforts in all of these agen.
cies. Every time we have a meeting, we find there seems to be a dupli-
¢ation in various fields.

For example, in education of young people. In the matter of young
people, you have dropouts. you have (ﬁz]inquents. vou have people who
aro juvenile criminals. and you have others and every agency seems to
have some phas:s«f this work,

Coorvrzarep Frrorr NECESSARY

The same is true in the Committee on Aging and in the aging ficld,
every agency seems to have some input. We have never had this draw-
ing together of all of the various functions of these various agencies.
The reason is because every committes has jurisdiction over is little
phase of whatever the problem is and everyone wants to delve into that
problem from its ¢wn angle and there has not been any coordinated
effort. T do hope this coordinative effort will give us a true picture of
what we are trying to do and where we are heading because I can see
where, if you do not have a true picture, the universities probably will
not know where they are going. Each university will be thinking along
one line and there may be dup’ication of efforts and there will be a
wasting of money. I can see with the powers in your directorship, yon
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will De able to tell each university what phase of the work on aging
that they will be able to enter. Is that the idea ?

Dr. Fremarng. At least the college or university will know what
th> Government’s objectives are, what our priorities are, what agen-
cies are purticipating ii programs designed to achieve those objectives
and then they can make their decision as to whether or not they want
to Jdevelop proposuls which are consistent with those objectives and
thos« priorities. .

H wiag been on the other side of the table for 10 years, 1 know that

t is difficul® for any one institution to identify all of the departments
and agencies of the Government that are involved in research in aging
or chat are involved in a good many other activities. Certainly looking
ut it from that point of view, I would welcome the Federal Govern-
ment saying : Here is a statement of our objectives, and our priorities;
here is an indication of the agencies that are prepared to participate
in the program designed to carry out the objectives. I would certainly
welcome having one person who could give me guidance and assistance
in trying to work with the various departments and agencies. This is
1hie objective that we have in mind.

Senator Fonag. Now that you have the objective and shown us where
part of the money is, could you tell us when the proposal of the admin-
istration in bringing all of these agencies together will be available
wndd the amount of mouney that they will have dealing with the problem
of aging? Will that amount of money, together with the amount of
money that we have appropriated in the general field of aging, be more
than what we have heretofore appropriated?

Could you give us that?

Dr. Fremmine. Senator, I would rot want to respond offhand to
that question. I think if you give us ' chance over a period of a few
months to pull this together, in the --ay that I have indicated, that
then it would be possible to be respor sive to a question of that kind.

GRANTS To S "UDENTS

Senator Foxc. With the Preside. t's proposal, we would have a
basic opportunity grant to students, ia the field that they choose. With
th:. number of adﬁed students that will be put under this program.
could you say that there will be more-money funneled into tgis phase
of our efforts in aging?

Mr. Kurzman. We can certainly say, Senator Fong, that very sub-
stantial additional moneys are being put into student aid by reason
of the express basic opportunity grants prograwr. As my testimony
indicated, the revision by the Congress in that stra*:gy kept the in-
crease that the President had proposed to approximately half a mil-
lion dollars over the set fiscal 1973 money for genersl student aid.

It changed the mission of programs so that the basic opportunity
grants program will, in this fall, only go into effzct for freshmen, but
it did place funds in the college work study program; the President
had asEed for continuation of that program. It also placed fands in
‘the naticnal direct student loan program and the supplemental op-
portunity grants program, all of which will be available for under-
graduates and graduates ii: the field of aging, as well as in other fields.
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We think that there exists a very substantial inerease in the pro-
portion of our population eligible for prograin benefits. We think
there is enormous interest gencrated by the new services and cash
assistance programs which are now going into eifect. For example.
there is the progran scrvices of title I1I and VII of the Older Amer-
icans Act. There is the new supplemental security income progran
which the Social Security Administration will implement in January
of the coniing year. All of these will combine to generate teriffie inter-
est, we believe, in the lield of aging among undergraduate and grad-
uate students who will have this great infusion of additional Federal
support for their expenses of college and post-graduate training.

Senator Foxg. As members of the Committee on Aging, we do not
want to see the older people shortchanged. We want to sce them get as
inuch as we can provide for them, in line with our fiscal position; and
that is the reason why we want to know how are they coming out
in this new concept.

Mr. Kvrzyan. We understand and sympathize witl: you entirely,
Senator Fong; HEW’s constitrer.cy consists in large part, if not ex-
clusively, of very high level, vulnerable groups within our population :
The poor, aged. children, disabled; and onr interest is congruent with
your committee’s concerns.

IxneQurraste Distminomion

We just feel this very targeted kind of narrow training program
1s drawn up not only in aging but in a series of fields, which is distrib-
uted inequitably Dberanse it is disbursed to a limited number of insti-
tutions. With the resonrces and training programs available, we think
through a combination of student aid, student choices, plus a mwch
better focused coordinating research and demonstration pregram, we
will in fact have a better training picture and a greater invol ement
of institutions of higher education in the field of aging thau we have
actually had before.

Senator Foxa. Dr. Flanning, T know yon were just sworn in the
other day but could you give us an idea of what is the target date
whereby you could give ns some picture of how this coordinating is
working?

Dr. I'Learanxe. Target date?

Senator FFong. Yeos.

Dr. Freaaring. I think that by the time the Congress returns from
the August recess that I will be in a position to share some very spe-
cific information with the committee along this line.

Senator Fong. Fine.

Dr. Fresune. The process will not have been completed by any
means, but th~ reason I set that as a target date is that I know that
unless I achieve that date, I cannot be very helpful to the educational
community as educational institutions work on their budget for the
next fiscal year.

Senator Fone. That is your top priority, though ¢

Dr. Fresemne. That is right. f)nm giving this a very high priority
so that educational institutions will have the informativn available in
September, so that they can begin to file applications and will know
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what is going to happen to those applications in time for them to make
their commitment for their fiscal or academic year, 1975.

Senator Foxe. So you do not need any legislation at all?

Dr. Freatarrxe. I feel the legislation which is in the Older Ameri-
cans Act plus the directive from the President gives me ample author-
ity and opportunity of getting results.

Senator Foxa. If you were ready, could you give something in writ-
ing to the committee so we could have an idea when you are ready ?

Dr. Freamiva. 1 would be very happy to. I will he glad to kee
in touch with the staff of the committee, as ihis process goes forwm'({),
and with the members of the committee. At an appropriate time, I
would be very happy to send a communication indicating our status
and if the committee would like me to come up and discuss it with
them, I would be more than happy to do so.

Mr. Kurzman. I would like to try to conclude quickly on the third
clement, the development of comprehensive service programs.

Finally, institutions of higher learning will be helped in attracting
persons to and preparing them for careers in aging by the policy of
using Federal dollars to encourage the development of comprehensive
and coordinated service and nutrition programs for older persons
newly authorized under 1972 and 1973 amendments to titles ITT and
VII of the Older Americans Act. The 1974 budget request includes
$196 million for these programs as contrasted with $44.5 million avail-
able at the present time.

STRENGTIHEN AND Exranpine PRoGRrAMS

The initiation, st:engthening and expansion of such programs in
many communities will have the following results for colleges and
universities :

It will provide them the opportunity to become involved in State,
area, and community planning for the coordinated delivery of essential
service to older persons.

It will pmvidle them the opportunity to offer courses for older per-
sons as a part of the comprehensive service programs.

It will provide them with the opportunity to offer both short-term
and long-term programs to train or update the trairing of persons
who operate the service programs for older persons. For example,
universities are now assisting 2,500 nutrition project directors in short-
terin training.

If a college or university decides to take advantage of the oppor-
tunities for service to the field of aging provided by the development
of these comprehensive community based service programs for older
persons, it will have the following results in the area of training for
work in the field of aging :

The meaningful involvement of the college or university in these
community based service programs will capture the attention of both
undergraduate and graduate students and will help to attract them
to the field of aging.

Undergraduate and graduate students will have opportunities for
being involved in both the planning and operation of these programs
and, as a result, will lecrn by doing and, at the same time, add to their
financial resources.
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Fees paid for participating in conrses forr older persons and in short-
term and long-term training programs for those who are recruited to
operate the service progran.s for older persons will help to strengthen
the financial base of the institution’s total progran in the field of
cerontology.

OTtirir TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES

To supplement these major training opportunities. colleges and
universities will from time to time have the opportunity to participate
in training programs designed to assist the Ifederal Government in
meeting specific national objectives.

For example, in March 1972, President Nixon announced his in-
tentions to dramatically npgrade the quality of nursing home vare.
In response to this message, the Department of Health, Edunecation,
and Welfare helped to establish a nationwide network of training pro-
arams designed to inerease the knowledge and to improve the skills
of personnel engaged in providing patient care in nursing homes.
Training for 40.000 unrsing home staff members is programed for com-
pletion by July 1974. In addition, university based training for State
nursing home surveyors has been completed for 1,000 surveyors,

Under the Federal Emplovees Training Act. to take another ex-
ample, IFederal agencies ean finance the cost of making it possible for
Federal personnel working in the field of aging tc obtain necessary
specialized training in aging from colleges and universities.

Tn snmumary, this administration believes that the Federal Govern-
ment can help colleges and universities become involved in the field
of aging. and, by so doing, contribute significantly to research and
demonstration programs, the development of coordinated and compre-
hensive service programs for older persons, the training of personnel
engaged in these programs and. by so doing, plays a major role in
responding to manpower demands as they develop in the field of aging.

Senator Cnires. Mr. Kurzman, we have gone long over our time
here, but I have a series of questions, some of which I would like to
submiit to you, and ask you tc answer them for the record, and we are
trying to complete our record within o week or 10 days, so if there is
any way you conld help ns, we would appreciate it.

Mr. Kurzaax. The questions will be answered and submitted for the
hearing record.?

Senator Crres. In a memorandum sent to the Social Rehabilita-
tion Service regional offices in April of 1973,° two major points were
made: (1) New proposals be considered for traineeships, that only
students who are previously enrolled in the program Wou})d be eligible,
and only until June 30 of 1974; and (2). the faculty or institutional
support will be limited to a inaximnm 50-percent snpport of the student
returning to the program.

$2.9 Mirtion Cursack Cimen

I further understand these two phases of activities will produce
a $2.9 million cutback of efforts under the old training act, and these
rajse a number of questions which I woud like to direct to you.

8 See app. 4, item, 1, p. 147,
¢ See app. 1, item 4, p. 176.
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Is the information that the committee has received about these pro-
posals correct ?
| Mr. Kurzaan. I am not familiar, Mr. Chairman, with the particu-

ars.

I would be happy to answer your question in writing on this.

In general, I should point out that the Department’s responsibility
is to alert the agencies of any actions that may well have to be con-
sidered under the budget’s proposal ; so the President’s budget did pro-
pose that this be phased out.

Senator Cruires. This memorandum will not be in effect until next
year, this would not—

Mr. Kurzaax. I think I ought to point out, I meant to do this in
connection with your opening statement, Mr. Chairman, that the train-
in%funds are forward funding.

for the Administration on Aging, this means the funds appropri-
ated for fiscal year 1973 are spent during the school year 1973-74,
starting next September. The result is that under the President’s
budget proposal, there would be a phasing down. it would decrease
$2.9 million from the $8 million which was the 1972 figure. The pro-
posal is to phase it out for the following school year, 1974-75.

I think that is an important point. We are not talking about the
present program. It is not a cutoff that would be effective on June 30
of this year. I am talking of the following school year.

Senator Cmires. That is a reduction that ytu are telling the uni-
versities not to take any additional pupils, that you will not fund
any additional pupils, and that you are only funding a percentage of
the ones thers 0¥5O percent, von have already issned that instruction?

Mr. Korzaan. Dr. Flemming ismore familiar than X am.

Dr. Freyming. You have summarized it corvectly, Mr. Chairman.

To carry out this decision reflected in the President’s budget, it was
necessary for the Social Rehabilitation Service where the Administra-
tion on Aging was located at that time to develop an instruction on
phasing out training programs.

GOVERNMENT STIPENDS CURTAILED

You are dealing with a forward funding situation, as Mr. Kuvzinan
indicated, so they were told that the Federal Government would not.
provide stipends for new studeunts, beginning in the fall of 1973. They
were also told that the institutional support would be related to the
number of students that would still be in the program.

Senator Crires. The Congress has set up this categorical program,
it would seem like the Congress would have something to say to this
matter.

Now, warning institutions that the President’s budget does not fore-
see that funding being available, would certainly secem to be warranted
if the President’s budget did not provide that, but it would seem like
the action of Congress would have something to do with whether this
program would go forward or not.

Dr. Freavine. It is clear that the decision reflected in the Presi-
dent’s budget for 1974 is a decision that is a form of a recommendation
to the Congress. Of course the Congress will make the final determi-
nation of that recommendation, as it appropriates the funds for 1974.
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But. the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare is simply
taking note of the decision reflected in the President’s 1974 budget,
recognizing of course that the Congress might arrive at a different
conclusion.

Senator Cres. Doctor, I am happy to hear you recognize that they
might.

We have not had that recognition around here very mucl.

Dr. Frenmanxe. I recognize that sometimes recommendations made
to the Congressare not accepted by the Congress.

Mr. Kurzaman. Qur direct testunony concedes that point when we
talk abont the student aid mix, we would prefer one more targeted on
students’ needs, which is the President’s basic opportunity grants as
provided for.

The Congress sought to keep a different mix-—to keep some of the
older programs in place. The President accepted that decision of Con-
gress, and we are implemnenting that program.

Senator Crings. If the Congress feels fit to feel there still should he
some kind of special training for the aging, as well as coordination of
all of the other programs. perhaps you can work in that direction?

Mr, Kurzyax. I think that is a hypothetical we will have to answer,
Mr. Chairman, when and if that occasion arises.

Senator Cruwes. 1 mean if that was the legislation that came from
the Congress. .

Mr. Kurzman. Obviously the President has a constitutional role
here too, and we have to await his determination.

Senutor Cmres. Assuming that if the bill became law, the legisla-
tion became law.

Mr., Kurzman. We are following the law now and we would con-
tinue to do so.

Senator Criies. Well, when you are withholding funds, or you ad-
vise the ageneies that you will withhold some $2.9 million. are you
following the law now?

Mr. Korzarax. We believe weare.

Buperr Prorosarn o CoNgRiss

We believe we have an obligation to alert and advise the agencies
that the President’s budget does propose this to the Congress so that
they do not rely on some other expectation.

At this point, that is what the President has propused, and the Con-
eress has not yet acted.

Senator Cyres. The President’s proposal is not law, is it?

Mr. Kurzman. Not at this point, no.

On the other hand, we think we have an obligation to these institu-
tions who have relied on this program, to notify them of the adminis-
tration’s intentions.

Senator Ciures. T would like to have a copy of your memorandum.

I would like to see whether you have notified them that was a
possibility, or you have instructed themn not to take anymore students.

I would like to see a copy of the memorandurn.

Mr. Kurzaax. We will supply that for the record.”

7 8ec apn. 1, ttem 4, p. 156,
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[Two memorandums with respect to the phaseout of direct training
grants were sent to SRS regional Commissioners by the Acting Ad-
minmistrator, Social and Rehabilitation Service. The regional offices
had responsibility for notifying educational institutions of the new
policy. Copies of the memorandums, dated April 16 and May 17 ap-
pear in appendix 1, item 4, page 156.]

Senator Cirrres. Senator Gurney.

. Senator GurnEey. To put it arother way, the activities that are now
In effect in these colleges and universities, also have to be funded by
an act of Congress, is that correct ?

Mr. Korzaman. That is correct.

Senator GurNEY. So Congress has not acted either way, the Presi-
dent in rccommending one course, which will be followed if it goes as
he recommends, but then obviously the colleges and universities will
be really out on a limb, with the limb sawed out from under them, so
,Vlou are warning them not to do this, out of, I think, good advice to
them,

Senator Ciiires. Mr. Kurzman, in addition to what is.already on the
books, in the Older Americans Act, Congress did not appear to be
retreating from the special training program. As I read the amend-
ments to the act, they appeared to be strengthening the program, but
the authorization appears to be strengthened in this title IV, training
section IV, The purpose of this part 1s to improve the quality of the
service to help meet critical shortages of trained personnel in the field
of aging, by: (1) Developing information, and actual needs of per-
sonnel working in the field of aging, (2) to provide a broad range of
quality training and retraining opportunitizs, (3) to atiracting a
greater nunber of qualified persons in the field of aging, and %4)
helping make personnel training programs mere responsive to the
need for training personnel in the field of aging. ) )

It would appear that the Congress is speaking of strengthening this
program rather than retreating from it.

Mr. Kurzarax. As I indicated, Mr. Chairman, wany of these activi-
ties are exactly the activities we propose to continue and strengthen.

The one subsection of that which deals with stipends to institu-
tions, we are proposing to the Congress not to fund beyond the next
school year.

SarriNGg oF SurpPorT

Under the forward funding, it is funded to the extent of sorne $3.5
million for the next school year. We are proposing to the Congress
not to fund it again. It is our proposal to shift to other sources of sup-
port, principally student aid, dernonstration, and service pregrams.

Senator Cres. The administration’s proposal in the area of general
noncategorical student aid, as I understand your administration’s pol-
icy in regard to institutional support, it is that these grants are going
to take care of the institutional support of all of these other agencies?

Mr. I{urzaan. We are saying. Senator, that we think the combina-
tion of three sources of funds will be better than this narrow specific
institutional form of aid. '

The first isthe greatly increased general student aid, the second is the
coordinated research and development funds, much of which goes

20-~702—73-~—pt. 2—4
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for training, and the third is the linkages of universities and colleges
with the coordinated comprehensive service programs.

Senator CriLes. A short time ago, the committee sent out a ques-
tionnaire to educational institutions as to a programn of gerontology,
and the overwhelming response in our survey can be summed up as
follows: Their training programs are to be seriously curtailed and
terminated, and then agam. 1s it your feeling, doctor, these other pro-
grams are going to take care of that ?

Dr. Fresing. Mr. Chairman, as most of the institutions know, I am
certainly prepared with the assisiance of my colleagues to work with
them on an institution-by-insitution basis.

Where the institution is clearly committed to the field of aging, I am
woing to, with the assistance of my associates, do everything I can
to see to it that they get the Lind of Federal support in these other areas,
which will enable them to continue their present programs but hope-
fully, to strergthen them. :

Now, I men*ioned a number of times institutions that are committed
to the field of aging. There are quite a number that have made very
clear commitments, concurred in by the governing body, the president
of the institution, and the faculty. It is those institutions that we really
want to work with in order to strengthen their position in the light of
their commitment, and I think we can do thai.

I think we can h:ve a successful experience.

Senator Crires. One of the major interrelations of the Older Amner-
icans Comprehensivc Services Amendments was a provision for multi-
disciplinary centers of gerontoiogy which would support a compre-
hensive program of research and training.

Funpine Nor RreQuested

Since this wathorization and legislation was not enacted into law,
and President Nixon supported and submitted his fiscal budget last
Jannary, no funding was requested for this.

Now that the Older Americans Comprehensive Service Amendments
hiave becomne law, I am interested in knowing whether the administra-
tion will support funding for this program.

Dr. Fremmine. Mr. Chairman, I am about to begin the process of
determining the kind of recommendations that are going to be made
to the Departiment for the fiscal year 1975 budget. And the Department
of course, will be making determinations as to what to recommend
to the President.

This is one of the areas to which I will address myself. ]

You can see that some of tha things that I have said about coordinat-
ing research and demonstratior: programs, and the impact of that
on educational institutions is rather closely related to the title to which
you have referred. I certainly recognize that the Congress has provided
this authorization; it did not, however, authorize any specific sums;
it simply provided that such sums as necessury be authorized. I cer-
tainly will be making some recommendations about this title, as T will
on all of the other titles, in connection with the fiscal year 1975 budget.
"That process is just beginning, and I have not hid the opportunity to
becoine involved in it as yet.
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Senator Cuives. Section 402(a) of the Older Americans Compre-
hensive Service Amendments p10v1ded the Commission shall from
time to time appraise the Nation’s insisting on future personnel needs
in the field of aging. In view of this duectl\e Dr. Fleming, how do
you plan to implement this provision, and how frequently do you
rhlnk the periodic survey should be made?

. Freson~e. First of all, T recognize that this responsibility has
becn phccd on me by the law ‘and I celt‘unly intend to present a pro-
gram for carrying out that responsibility. I have not had the oppor-
tumt} for suflicient discussion on this issuc with the staff of the Ad-
ministration on Aging. In response specifically to your question, I will
be happy to answer it in a month or so, after I have had an opportu-
nity to study it.

Senator CriLes. Thank you.

Senator Gurney ¢

Senator GurNey. Mr. Secretary and Dr. Flemming, I have a num-
ber of questions I want {o pose, but they involve sums of money that go
mto these programs, and 1 think probably require a little research in
your own shop to prodnce them, so I will submit them in writing.

It is my understanding of this whole area of aging, that cach year
we put more resources, more money into it, and doing # much better
job all along, at least as fur as money is concerned, and I want to draw
out these facts so it will appear in the record, becauss we have had
some rifle shots here and there, that perhaps some sacred cow is not
being milked at a particular university, and I think we should be more
interested in the overall programs, and my questions will be written
and directed to you. and I wish you would supply them for the record.

Mr. Kurzmax. We will be happy to answer any questions you may
have and supply them for the record.®

SirorraGcr oF TrAINED PERSONNEL

Senator Criies. Just fer vur record, so it is clear, is it not so that we
do not have trained personnel in this field, that we are grossly short of
trained personnel*

Dr. Fremarivg. The testimony indicated that we certainly recognize
the need for additional personne!. There is no doubt about that.

Senator CmiLes. And there will be a continuing and accelerating
need for personnel in the future, of trained personnel ¢

Dr. Fresmixe. Mr. Kurzinan has given you a couple of specific
Nlustrations.

There are personnel demands in connection with the SSI program,
under ILR. 1; and in addition to that, the fact that the President’s
budget calls for close to $200 million for titles III and VII of the
Older ‘mericans Act as contrasted with prior budgets, means that
additional trained personnel will be generated.

Mr. Korzuman. I should point out too, that in connection with this
supplemental security income progrftm which beconies effective Janu-
ary 1, 1974, it would add some 3 million new recipients to the rolls of
the aged, blmd and disabled—recipients of Federal assistance. The
Socm% Securlty Administration has already hired some 8,000 em-

"See app. 1, item 2, p. 149,
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ployees—approximately half of the total they will require to adminis-
ter this program on a national basis—and has already begun extensive
training programs of its own for those new employees. As we have
mentioned in connection with title IIT and title VII of the Older
Americans Act, we have begun to train approximately 2,500 nutrition
directors. So that we are aiready very actively engaged under other
anthorities and with other moneys with training to meet the demand.

Senator Crmres, As I understand it, under the last year’s budget, we
spent some $8 million, or we appropristed $8 million for the training
program, categorical programs?

Mr. Korzataw. That is covrect.

Senutor Cnires. And aside from the decision that we are going to
get avway from categorical programs, we are going to the student fund-
g, was there any stndy that showed that this program, was that a
failure ?

Mr, Konzayrax. No. Mr. Chairman,

I think the ground upon which we proposed to phase ont this half
doren or so narrow categorical prograins of direct institutional aid.
was not hased on the position that they have failed.

Clearly if you give institutions money and say they can attract
students hy reason of offering bait by coming in with a stipend, it is
going to work, there is no question about it.

Tt tends to select a relatively small number of institutions and at-
tract students into a small number of fields,

When yvou add these categorical or training programs together, it
is a patchwork that does not accurately reflect. in our view, either
studeni desires, nor does it accurately reflect the other side of the de-
mand picture—the kinds of needs that are evident in the communities.

Senator CimrLes. Part of that would relate to the number of dollars
vou are putting into the program, about $8million? )

Mr. Kurzaan. No. it is just the type of distribution whicl. seems
to us to not be very well adapted to matching the manpower needs with
the manpower availability.

Senator Cmives. T vou were having some T0-something percent of
people going into that, and specializing, that sounds like a pretty
high percentage to me.

Mr. Kourzaraw. Senator Gurney pointed out that about a quarter of
those students lacked the coinmitment to continue, and we think under
a student aid, research. and demonstration, plus the service approach,
that perhaps we will attract 100 percent who will enter the field after
training.

That is a better cost henefit ratio than 75-25,

Sr.aator Crires. As a dream it is, but is it the reality that you can
count on. I wonder if you know of any other programs that you are
getting that kind of mix, 100 percent ?

" Mr. Kurzaean. Well, I have nothing specific to go on, except clearly
where a student picks a field of interest, it is his choice, and not hecause
Le has heen attracted to a specific stipend, but ratier he has been given
financial assistance, which means that he can enter any field, in any
university or college, with a sense of commitment.
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Senator Crures. Do you know what percentage of students that go
to law school end up being lawyers?

Mr. Kuorzyaxn. Lawyers now do many things including testifying
before Congress.

Senator Corces. I would say it would not be 77 percent.
. Mr. Kurzman. With changes in the legal profession, and the ways
m which lawyers are used, probably legal training is used much more.

DirrereNt Scroors oF Tuoveirr

Dr. Freamng. Mr. Chairman, in this subject of student aid, there
are two schools of thought within the educational world, as well as
outside of it. As Mr. Kurzman has pointed out, the Presicent, through
his budget, decided to align himself with one school of thought, which
does give the individual student the maximum opportunity of free-
dom for making his own decision relative to his career, and his de-
cision will not be unduly influenced, because of the fact that the
{financial inducements in one area are more attractive than they are
in another.

Now, both sides of this are debatable. As one who has been in the
field of educational administration, I personally favor a policy which
gives the individual student maximum freedom in making his decision.

Senator Cuives. I think that we have always offered some induce-
ments when we felt it was necessary to attract people into something
that was a new program, or something that perLaps had had the
publicity, and we are always trying to do something extra to try to
provide doctors in the rural community.

They have their free choice, they can all go in if they want to, but
we are always trying to induce them to go in, and it seems to me that
this was a new enough program, that we need some inducement to
attract people to it, as opposed to opening up more funds with which
they can go into any of the regular disciplines or professions, and now
it 1s going to be much more available to go into those, I just wondered
what we are going to get.

Dr. FreainG. I have developed enough insight in the field of aging
over the period of the past 2 years, and I brlieve that those who are
responsible for developing and implementing programs in the field of
aging, colleges and wniversities, will be able to comipete successfully for
some of the very best undergraduate and graduate students.

"Time alone will tell whether or not that is correct.

Senator Crtmwes. I hope you are correct, and I think it does appear,
once they get the progra 1 to start working. they become very caught
up in it.

Our testimony has revealed that. I think the figures of 77 percent
reveal that. I think that is very, very high for any kind of discipline.
T think that is very, very high, and it shows that they stay and get
caught vp with it, but T think the figures show that, and I hope you
are right. i .

Senator Gurney. Perhap: other way of getting at it would be
this, in the increased money. you are putting into the overall pro-
gram of gerontology, as compared to what we have done in previous
years and just last year, do you think any of your money will go want-
g, begging, or unspernt ?
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Mr. Korzuman. No; we do not anticipate that.
Senator GurNEY. 1 would doubt it.

Mavcrmine Manpower To NEEDS

Mr. Korzman. We are talking about the kind of mechanisms that
really best matches available potential manpower to the manpower
needs; and what I think the President’s proposal is doing, is saying
that the market mechanism is the best way to do that.

One bit of evidence we do have, where the Federal Government did
get into a specialized training program for the training of teachers——
1t created an oversupply. We do not know very accurately—we do not
have that kind of capability in a country of this size—when a specific
inducement like a narrow categorical program for a specific field ought
to be turned off. We found that the program was not turned off in time,
and we have created a considerable waste of teachers who are trained,
but cannot find employment.

flenator CorNEY. Did not we also do that in the fields of science and
technology ¢

Mr. Kurzman. You are exactly right, sir.

Senator Gur~ry. We overinvested ¢

Mr. Kurzman. That is correct.

Again, we are targeted on a specific type of training, and did not
permit the market mechanism to operate.

Senator Cries. I just noticed from the recommendations on the
White House Conference on Aging, one of the specific recommenda-
tions was to especially induce training, traineeships, scholarships, tui-
tion grants, and loans, that they should be used to recruit personnel,
particularly those in minority groups into careeis for the aged.

Dr. FremMing. We must keep in mind that aging has not been
singled out here in the President’s 1974 budget.

It is a part of a broad policy decision that affects quite & number of
areas. As you can see, our thrust now is to take the : *sources and
authorities that are available and handle them in such & way as to
strengthen t}.e resources available to the educational community in the
field of aging. That in turn will attract both undergradust: and grad-
uate students who in turn will devote their lives to the fieid of aging.

Senator Crimres. I certainly agree with you, doctor, that aging, train-
ing was not singled out, I think it was kind of caught in the decision
that was changing the other categorical approaches.

1 would like to submit & couple of questions, if I may that could be
answered for the record, to Dy, Tibbitts.?

AoA Training GraxTs

Under title IV, part C of the new Older Americans Act, the Admin-
istration on Aging may make grants to institutions and organizations
for the purpose of establishing or supporting multidisciplinary centers
of gerontology.

‘What is the relation of these proposed centers with overall training,
and how will the overall training be affected ¢

9 See app. 1, item 5, p. 188, for reply of Dr. Clark Tibbitts, Zirector, manpower develop-
ment, Administration on Aging, Office of Human Development, HEW.
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And to Dr. LaVeek, the Scnate Committee on Aging did not receive,
as it usually does, a report describing activities related to aging at the
National Institute on Child and Human Developinent.

I would like such a report from NICHD for this hearing record, and
I would like to have it within the next week.°

Also for the record, if you could deseribe the level of support in the
fir ) year 1974 budget with that of the fiscal year 1973 budget in
regard to training related to agin%

Dr. LaVecg. That portion of the President’s hudget to be spent on
aging research by NICHD is:

__________________________________________ $5, 771, 000

Intramural researcbh_____ - 3, 452, 000
Research eontraets . _______ 600, 000
Epidemiologicil research _ 95, 000

Total ... e e 9, 918, 000

In addition the fiscal year 1974 budget contains $630,000 for research
management and $1,290,000 for training for vesearch.

The total NICHD budget concerned with aging is thus $11,838,000
for fiscal year 1974,

The research on aging conducted and supported by NICHD is con-
cerned with medical, biological, and behavioral aspects of aging as they
relate to health.

Senator Cnices. I want to thank all of you fur appearing, and for
your testimony this morning. '

Mr. Kurzyan., Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator CHiLes. Because we are running a little pressed for time, |
think if we could have Dr. Maddox, who is accompanied by Professor
Cohen, if they would come on up, and then maybe Dr. Donahue, if vou
could come to the table, we would make it a panel.

We will accept your prepared statements in full, and perhaps if you
could summarize them for us in your testimony, we can then get into a
panel diseussion more quickly.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE MADDOX, Ph. D, DIRECTOR, DUKE UNI-
VERSITY CENTER FOR THE STUDY OF AGING AND HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT, AND CHAIRMAN OF THE EDUCATION COMMIT-
TEE OF THE GERONTOLOGICAL SOCIETY

Dr. Mavvox. 1 would like to emphasize two points, especially in the

light of the testimony just preceding us. I call your attention to iny

repared statement, where T describe the position taken by the White
House conference on Aging on research and training.

The people attending the White House Conference were deliberately,
not only academic people, but chosen to represent broadly those in-
terested in the aging.

The previous testimony indicated there were two points of view in
regard to research and training in aging, and the White House Con-
ference came down unanimously for categorical support of these
activities.

There were knowledgeable people that looked at the situation, and
they recommended categorizal support. The post conference board had

18 Gee app. 1, item 6, n. 160,
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before it the specific proposals from the administration you heard pre-
sented_this morning. These administration proposals were reviewed
carefully in the light of their experience and reasonable projections
about future needs. The post-conference board recommended against
these particular proposals.

Aging has eome a long way. I do not suggest it is a totallv un-
interesting area, but it hasa long way to go to become competitive with
other carcers. There are very speeial problems in working in the
field of aging.

GeriaTrics Arrracts Few DPrivsicians

Our society, for example. Las not done all it can for the aging. I am
particularly aware of this after a deeade of working in a medical
center at a university. Geriatric medicine attracts very few physicians.

This is also true for nursing, for clinical psychology, and to some
extent social work. T do not see the inducements for large numbers of
students to develop carcers in aging. More than money will certainly
be required to develop and maintain manpower for serviee, training,
and research,

My second comment. and with this I will conclude my presentation.
concerns the importance of gerontology centers as the context for de-
veloping and maintaining manpower in the field of aging.

[ we are in fact to depend inereasingly on market forces to attract
manpower under the administration proposals, it. is extremely impor-
tant that we have attractive programns to present.

We are not assured of that at the present time sinee appropriations
have apparently not been requested to implement the development of
gerontology centers provided for in the amendments to the Older
Americans Act.

I was not reassured by the testimony that perhaps in 1975 there
might be some support for these centers which I believe would be
crucial now,

Senator Ciines. Thank you. Your prepared statement will be made
part of the hearing record.

I’REPARED STATEMENT oF GrorGe L. 2Mapvox, PPu. D.

Mr. Chairman, I am George L. Maddos, director of the Center for the Study
of Aging and Human Development, Duke University. Today I appear as chair-
man of the education cominittee of the Gerontological Society.

Fur over a dccade, I have heen actively involved in research and teaching on
problems of the aging and have served in an advisory capacity to NIMII, NICEHD,
and the Administration on Aging for a decade. I was an author of the techmical
background paper on rescarch and demonstration for the 1971 White House
Conference on Aging and chairman of the committee on research angd training for
the post-conference hoard.

The Gerontological Society, and I personally, vigorously support increased
Federal appropriations for rescarch and training in the interest of-improving
the quality of life of elderly persons. The prospect that Federal support for
training and research in aging will decline or, at best, will remain constant
disturbs all informed persons. The prospect is disturbing because it comes at a
time when the number of ol@er persons in our society is increasing at an unprece-
dented rate and increasing faster than any other age group in our population,
The elderly now constitute 10 parcent of our population—a percentage which
bas doubled since the turr ol the century. Population projections indicate that
the proportion of the elderly may be as high as 16 percent within the next 50
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years. Tha special needs for a wide range of health and social services among
the aged is well documented.

As 2 Nation we have received convincing evidence that our current sociad
services and institutional arrangements for the elderly are inadequate or, at best,
barely adequate, and often appear to be both ineffective and ineflicient. A sizable
minority of the elderly live in poverty; many of them are at high risk for ex-
tensive medical eare and for spending their last years in special care facilities
of dubious quality. Many lack adequate transportation and housing and are at
high risk for losing vital contiict with the social world around them.

Our intention as a Nation. and the announced intention of the Administration,
ix that our elderly citizens must be assured an adequate quality of life. We
concur. But the representatives to the 1971 White House Conference on Aging—
which included the vest informed laymen and professionals in the United States—
argued persuasively that our national objectives for the elderly will not be
achieved without increased investment in research and training in gerontology.
Improved organization and delivery of services to the elderly are predicated on
adequate information and on trained manpower.

Representatives to the White House Conference on Aging noted that, until
very reeently, research and training in aging have suffered from neglect. Con-
sequently, trained manpower for research and training in aging is quite limited
and the number of academic institutions ecommitted to producing this manpower
remains small.

We need to be frank about the manpower situation in aging. Working with
the aged, in spite of its societal importance, is not glamorous and does not appeal
to mnny when they are considering alternative carcers. This is why the educa-
tion eomnittee of the Gerontological Society hax attacked so vigorously the
administration's application of its principle of “no categorical training” to re-
search and training in aging.

The administration, using as its illustration biomedical research and training,
argues that goals for planned expansion in specialized manpower have been
reached and that law of supply and demand will now suffice to produce needed
manpower, This argument is generalized to training in aging. Both the White
Ilouse Conference vn Aging pnst-conference board and the education comimittee
of the Gerontological Society are on record as rejecting the applicability of this
conclusion to the field of aging. The facts indicate the contrary. The detailed
statement from the Gerontological Society is submitted for the record.”

We understand and accept the ieed for fiscal responsibility. But we argue
that our estimates of iinmediate and long-range need for trained manpower in
aging indicate the need for an increased, not a decreased, investment at this
time. Efficient, effective services for the elderly will nc. be insured by reduction
of support for research and traming. The contrary is true. Adequate appropria-
tions, particularly for training, must be insured for both NICHD and AoA.

Based on a decade of service as a study section member in the NIH and on
continuing discussions with knowledgeable colleagues regarding the fiscal needs
of the adult developmnent branch of NICHD, 1 estimate that NICHD could
sapend responsibly at least $16 million in research and training in fiscal 1974.
This is $4.3 million more than currently requested. My detailed estimates are
as follows:

Adult Development Branch, NICHD

(in millions)
Agency Minimum
request needed

1964 1974
Research . _________ - ———— $6.0 %9.0
Contracts .__ i ——————— ———e 0.6 1.6
Training _.._ e e —— e o e o o e e 1.6 2.0
Intramural - _______ — 3.6 3.6

11.8 16.1

As a related matter, I call your attention to the research and training titles of
the receutly passed amendinents to the Older Americans Act. The administration
has not requested an appropriation for training. Responsible estimates of mini-
muin hudgetary needs for the Administration on Aging to carry forward its

"' See p. 180.
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program of research and training in the interest of improved services for the
clderly in tiscal 1974 are:

Administration on Aging Research and Demonstration and Training Needs
Fiscal 1074

Milliyn

Training ---< . - $8
Research and demonstration e ————— Q
Regional gerontology centers A ——— 12
20

In this presentation I have not made a distihetion between the need for re-
search and the need for training, Both are important and each develops best in
the presence of the other. Both research and training develop most adequately
when they are coordinated in the interest of seeuring nwore accurate information
about and more effcctive services for the elderly. Support for gerontological
centers is well documented jn tbhe proceedings of the 1971 White louse Con-
ference on Aging.

Mr. Chairman, I <tress the jmportance of gerontological centers beeause train-
ing at its bhest ix condueted in a context in which researell and evalnetion of
applied knowledze are integrally related activitios, Adequate training for service
personnel in the field of aging cannot he adequately =ustained in the long run
without centers. of excellence which provide the context in which the producers
and consunter: of knowledge about aging and programs for the aging interact
continually,

Currently there are only a few gerontological centers in the United States.
These centers have of necessity been heavily dependent on Federai support.
Eventually, a new balance of State and Federal support may be, perhaps should
be, achieved. But it is imperative that in the short run this adjustment in
sources of support should be carefully planned and executed in order to insure
adequate flow of trained manpower into social service and health programs for
elderly. Sustained Federal investment in gerontological training over the next
2 years ig essential at a minimum. After that, careful review will be necessary
to insure that a new balance of sources of financial support is in fact achieved.

In a period of transition' I am also concerned about coordination of activities
between NICHD (adult development) and AoA. Coordination of Federal re-
search and training activities in aging has always been 1ninimal. In the past
decade, some understandings have emerged, e.z., NICHID has emphasized basic
(vis a vis applied) research and research training in contrast to AoA’s empha-
sis on nonmedical and applied programs. I emphasized that these were emphases,
not exclusive preoccupations, achieved informally. In a time of transition, sev-
eral issues require explicit attention:

First, research and training in gerontology needs additional visibility in
the scientific community as well as additional Snancial support. The need for
additional information ahnut and trained personnel to complement needed service
programs for the elderly is very easy to overlook. Our national commitment to
respond to these needs should he clearly established in the National Institutes of
Health either by a National Institute on Aging or a Center for Aging within
NICHD. I would add that ‘ne creatfon of a Center on Aging with NIMH is also
long overdue.

Second, as funds are reduced, I observe a tendency to pit hiomedical against
behavior/socinl science research and training in aging. Bill H.R. 7724, e.g..
illustrates the general tendency to stress the needs of hiomedical research and
training at the expense of other types of research and training. I a:n a supporter
of hiomedical researeh nnd training. But I argne emphatically that the needs for
behavioral and social <cientiflc research In aging is, @ fortiori, as groat as the
need for biomedical rescearch. Thus, I am argning not against hiomedieal re-
search and training but for a sense of halance in the funding of these activities
in the future. ¥or the elderly particularly, problems tend to have a social and
psychological as well ag a -shysienl component.

Third, there i8 a related concern about the evaluation of research and training
in aging at the Federal leve.. The current emphasis on action programs and
coordination of Federal activities in aging is well placed. But I hope that these
emphares on action and coordination will not he viewed as antithetical to out-
side review of proposals for research and training. The review procedure of
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NICHD should be retained anag the review proceaure of AoA should use outside
review far more than it does eurrently. Moreover, the effects of regional de-
centralization of AoA on the review of research and training programs should
e reviewed carefully. Unless per:ons adequately trained in gerontology staff
regional offices of AoA, decentralization will turn out to be diffusion of
responsibility.

Fourth, careful attention should be given to the coordination of research and
training activities of NICHD and AoA in the next several years. The investment
of AoA in gerontological research and training is now greater than that of the
adnlt developionent branch of NICIID. IExplicit understandings about program
objeetives are needed.

We think the evidence is compelling. Research and training, which support
adequately the growing need for elderly persons for efficient and effective serv-
ices, must receive additional support, 10t less. Attention must be given to appro-
priate eoordination of effort to insure efficient use of scarce resources.

Decrensed support for training will dimiunish considerably our capacity to
insure our elderly citizens access to the understanding and services they need
and deserve.

Senator Crires. Professor Cohen. weleome to our hearing.

STATEMENT OF ELIAS COHEN, ASSISTANT PROFESSOR OF SOCIAL
ADMINISTRATION. DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY MEDICINE,
UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA MEDICAL SCHOOL AND CHAIR-
MAN OF THE SOCIAL RESEARCH, PLANNING, AND PRACTICE
SECTION OF THE GERONTOLOGICAL SOCIETY

Professor Canex. T would like to make just a few points.

First, there have been surveys of personnel and manpower shortages
over the years. '

Five years ago the Gerontological Society undertook a survey for
NICHD, and in 1971, your committee did have before it a working
papeir which detailed considerably some of the particnlar shortages.

Now, I was not glad to note, but T did note, that there are shortages
of personnel. Having been an administrator at the State level in the
field of aging, for some 12 years prior to my going into the university
setting, I can assure you that anytime we can find people who come
out of the gerontology programs, we find that we get a better result.

This takes me to i..v second point: In the last couple of years, the
(Congress and the administration have set into motion programs that
are voing to generate tremendous demand for service on behalf of the
elderly.

These programs include supplementary security income and the
Older Americans At amendments, The improvements in - income
which will go to older people are going to generate increased demand.
Older Americans will become more mobile; they will have greater
access to services outside of their homes. This is going to require, in my
opinion, a greater set of resources for delivering services which older
people will demand.

The third point T want to make goes to the question of applying a
“free market” philosophy to edneational programs.

The remarks concerning the inequities bronght about because a few
institntions =1 less than 100 pereent of i he institutions have grants for
conters of gerontology or programs in gervontolagv. snggest a philos-
ophy of equality for all. However. it does not recognize the need for
support for curriculnm development. comrse development, interschool
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coordination, and other uspects that go to the provision of courses in
nging. Wher: yon get right down to it. any program in aging at a uni-
varsity or institution of higher learning means courses. Courses have
to be developed; and they have to be developed by soinebody, and that
development has to take place in something other than in spare time.

The allusion that Dr. Maddex made to medical schools and schools
of nursing, is perhaps one of the be-t examples possible.

Very Frw Sprcral Procraws

There are very, very few medical schools, schools of nursing, schools
of allied health. which do have special programs of gerontology.
And yet we know that 35 to 40 percent of the hospital beds are occu-
pied by older people: and 98 percent of the long-term care beds in
this country are being occupied by older people. To suggest that we
are going to let the ordinary market mechanisms tryv to nfluence the
long-term care needs for persennel does not recognize reality.

Fourth, I would like to suggest that the use of subsidies is time-hon-
ored in our country.

We use subsidies to induce a great deal of activity and behavior, and
there is nothing wrong with the use of subsidies for special programs
in gerontology to move our society in that direction.

My fifth and final point is that it is good business to make an invest-
ment, in training personnel.

No industry wortl its salt could go into a new enterprise without
trying to be somewhat certain that there were training programs to
provide necessary personnel. If necessary, they will go forward and
subsidize themn as industries have done through grants to universities,
endowments, and <o on.

The administration, T think. has made a contribution over the past
few years by pressing s an advoeate for management by objective.
T think that is entirely appropriate. In that context, research, demon-
stration, and training in particular, ought to be viewed as an invest-
ment, designed to insure preduction of services that are accountable,
cost efficient, of high quality. controllable, and responsive to need.

I think the training would do that. We would certainly recommend
as your committee did. that there should be additional review made
of manpower neceds, some conclusions reached about the estimated
needs over the next 15 years. and a clear, direct strategy proposed that
will assure us of an adequate supply of personnel for the elderly for
1980, 1985, and 1990.

Thank you.

Senator Crirues. Thank you. Professor. yvonr prepaved statement
will also be in the hearing reeord.

PrepAreEd STATEMENT OF Erias S, Conpn

My name is Elias 8. Cohen. I amn appearing before yYou in my capacity as vice
president of the Gerontological Society, chairman of their social research, plan-
ning, and practice section and former chairman of the public policy committee of
the society. Currently I am assistant professor of social administration in the De-
partment of Community Medicine, School of Medicine, University of Pennsylvania,

The Gerontologicil Soclety which I am representing here today is the na-
tional organization of researchers, eduentors. and professionals in the field of

g
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aging. The members of our society comprise ihe expertise on aging in 1he
United States. Most of the new knowledge and information in the field of aging ix
produced by those who belong to our society. Furthermore, most of the
training and cducation in gerontology and aging is conducted by our member-
<hip.

'The society has a long history in the development of education and training
programs in gerontology and has undertaken for the Federal Government and
indeed, for your honorable committec, a variety of surveys and studies nn
triining needs.

Half a decade ago, the society prepared for the National Institute of Child
Health and Human Development a survey of training needs and mechanisms in
gerontology. More recently, in 1971 the society provided for your committee a
working paper on research and training in gerontology, which summarized the
needs, activities, current and future projections of muanpower shortages, and
offered recommendations for achieving appropriate levels of nceded manpower.
Ninee the preparation of that paper some 2 years ago, we have had a White
ITouse Conference on Aging wbich sought to assist the administration and the
Congress in the development of 1 national policy on aging,

Again and again, the White House Conference on Aging sections recommended
expansion of Federal support for training and research. The training section
recommended that a portion of all service resources be earmarked for training.
Three groups recommended creation of a national institute on aging tv further
support aging research and training. The training section called for the cur-
marking by the fnstitute of funds for training. The income section recommended
Federal assumption of responsibility for preparation of adequate supplies of
liealth manpower. Sections dealing with substantive issues recommended that
moreimuterinl on aging be inserted into the curricula of pre- and post-professional
training.

The recommendations of the White House Conference on Aging delegates
brought together from all over the country, comprised not of gelf-seeking self-
serving professionals but, by design, comprised of consumers, elderly people,
and minority groups much more than of professionals, recognized clearly the
importance and the need for a solid cadre of well-trained people to deliver the
badly needed services designed to improve the quality of life for older people.

The Congress and the administration have set into motion a series of programs
that will severely increase the needs for manpower in aging. These programs
are identifiable and important. If they are to achieve their purposes, the services
they contemplate must be delivered by trained competent staf? who will be able to
carry out the policies implicit and explicit in the authorizing legislation and pro-
grams developed under the legislation. The new approaches to service are so-
phisticated and properly enveloped in management systeins designed to produce
accountability to execuiive and legislative branches of government at local,
State, and Federal levels.

Some of the program developments of importance include the following:

(1) Amendments to the Social Sccurity Act providing for supplementary scei-
rity incomne to adults.

(2) Changes in Social Security program operations to provide for counseling
and referral services for Social Security beneficiaries. )

(3) Amendments to the Social Security Act providing for delivery of social
and related scrvices to public assistance recipients.

({4) Amendments to the Older Americans Act providing for significant expan-
sfon of social and related services under title I1I of the new Older Americans Act.

(5) Under the revenue sharing propssals, there are potentials created for
State and local service programs to mert the needs of elderly people. To be sure.
it will be necessary for clderly consti‘uents and those speaking in their behalf
to compete vigorously for funds. One of the elements in the calculus, of neces-
sity 1must be the availability of trained staff to carry out programs that are
selected and to infuse ongoing organiz:tions and social institutions with the
knowledge and importance of dealing with the elderly through their normal
operations.

(8) Significant improvements in Social Security benefit levels now and in the
future will serve to generate demand for service by increasing (..e ability of older
persons to secure and seek service. To the extent that improved income status
moves 2 significant number of people out of the poverty level and into a middle-
class level there will be an enhanced ability to secure transportation to service,
to participate in the social enterprizes of our society, and hence to avail then-
selves of health, socinl, and other services.
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in addition to these new developiments, the inexorable inerease of elderly per-
sons and more particularly the very old will continue to generate demand on
the one hand for increased numbers hut more particularly for hetter trained
personnel. Higher levels of soeial cflieiency c¢an only be ohtained by higher
levels of performance and design of hetter systems. Better systems design and
higher level performance are direct functions of well-trained personnel.

The need for a coordinated system of training derives from three principat
vonsiderations :

(1) An increased significant demand for services brought ahout as a result of
enactments by the Congress, approved by the administration.

(2) Increased numbers of persons cligible for and requiring services designed
to improve the quality of their lives. This inclndes that entire array of services
designed to assist people achieve maximum levels of functioning outside of insti-
tufional settings as long as such arrapgements are, indeed, the treatment of
chioiee for them.

(3) Inereasing sophistication and interdigitation of nmmltivariate programs
which require coordination among biologists, physiciang, psyehologists, sociolo-
gixts, political scientists, publie administrators. nurses, social workers, therapists.
wnd others. Qur experience with Medicare, with nursing home progras, and with
old age assistance shiould have taught us by now that to achieve high social pur-
pose for and with the elderly requires sophisticated, well thought out, well-
planned, and well-operated programs.

The report prepared for your honorable committee by the soeiety in 1971 de-
tailed a variety of surveys outlining shortages of personnel. Without rehearsing
that entire report, let me review come data that is now old gund. if anything.
represents an understatement of the problem :

(1) The 1969 report of the Secretary of HEW iudicated that the need for
trained workers in 1980 is expected to be at a level two to three times above that
of 1068, There were in 1963 about a third of a million professional and technieal
workers employed in serving older persons exclusively or primarily. Only 10 to 20
percent of them had any formal training in aging.

(2) The demand for personuel in nursing homes and personal cire homes was
detailed in terms of need for administrators, RN’s, LI’N's, and occupational
therapists, and physical therapists, Conservatively, we have only one-half of the
necessary RN's, and less than one-half of the necessury LPN's. The need for
physical and occupational therapists is so great that to suggest we have even
10 percent of the needed number is conservative.

(3) A study conducted by the National Assoeintion of Housing and Redevelop-
ment officials cited in the working paper predicted & need for 32,0600 to 43.000
niinggement and social service personnel in retirement housing for the elderly by
1980. This is an increitse of from six to eight times the number employed in 1968
but is regarded as realistie considering the expansion of programs for clderly
housing in public and private sectors.

(4) HEW projections for professional soeial work staff available to serve
persons in nursing homes, service programs, housSing projeets, senior eitizens
centers and elsewhere indieate a demnand for 1980 at least twice that of 1968.

(6) The National Reercation and Park Association estimates that staff posi-
tions in programs for older persons will be at least 23 percent higher and possibly
250 pereent higher in 1980 than in 1967.

One could go on and on reciting the needs for specialists in the soeial insuranee
programs, in new HMO's, certainly in medicine, and in research and teaching
itself, Indeed, if we are tc eonquer the scourges of eancer, heart disease, mental
impairment among the eldcrly, and the wultiple problemns brought on by poverty
and poor housing, we must have an adequate supply »f those skilled in the tech-
niques of well focused research and a supply of teachers available to train the
praetitioners.

It is respeetfully suggested that, as your working paper indicated, there is
a great nced for a national polley and a program of estimating personnel needs
and training requirements in aging. It is respectfully suggested that the following
principles might serve as a base for a national poliey on training in aging:

(1) The way to develop improved serviees to the aged is by inereasing the
number of trained personnel relating directly to the population to be served.

(2) Recent developments by the Congress, anticipated results in the areas of
medieal scienee, and the need for coordinating various flelds of knowledge re-
quires an institutionalized approach to edueation and training for aging. The
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corollary of this is that training for aging is oo important to leave to operations
of a free education market philosophy.

(3) The problems and facts of aging should be incorporated in formal wuys
into our secoudary and undergraduate levels of education. This ean be done, it
is suggested, only by providing a cadre of educators trained in gerontology who
can carry this kind of responsibility forward, It will not vecur simply by virtue
of the ineluctable inerease in the elderly and consequent increase in their needs
which theoretically will create a demand that a free market economy will respond
to.

The administration response to the White House Conference on Aging recom-
mendations of the delegates brought together from all over the country is in
some disagreement with the above principles. The administration rc:ponse sug-
wests that institutions of higher learning will benefit more by relianece cn a free-
market approach to development of educational programs. Thus, aging will
compete with all other programs, more or less glamorous for the attentions of
students who will be provided with forms of assistance to purchase their educa-
tion. This, of course, does not take into account the need for support to ‘nstitu-
tions for course development, organization of curricula for degree vprograms,
interschool eoordination, or administration of special training program: designed
to create the pool of nuanpower pecessary to carry out socially agreed spon and
tinanced programs.

A second part of the administration response is that provision of central eo-
ordination for Federal Government programs of research in aging will assist
institutions of higher learning by focusing upon agreed upon objectives and
ullocating resovrces in accordance with such a strategy. While that is true, it
must be recognized that this will have an impact on t.niring and education
lurgely to the extent of giving research experience to people in appropriate pro-
grams where research might be involved. However, there are large numbers of
and a great demand for practitioners of service programs. An improved focus
on research will have little impact on increasing the resources of educational
programs to produce the serviee presonnel.

Finaliy, the administration response suggests that encouraging the develop-
ment of eomprehensive and eoordinated service programs for older persons at
the eomnnnity level will sissist institutions of bigher education. While it is true
that universities and institucions of higher learning will be assisted to take
greater part in plamming aud development of service programs and will thereby
expose students and faculty to the process and involve them to a greater degree
in what somme people cull the real world that is not going "o provide the basic
support necessary to produce the graduates who are going to do the work and
who are needed in lurge numbers,

Those of us eoncerned with education and training and who cone to thit tield
from an experience in Government and administration recognize that resources
to invest in programs we are interested in are limited and must compete. We
must accept the faet that dollars invested in any program umst produce the hest
payoff. The current administration has niade i contribution in that regard by
taking a hard line and pressing forward as a strong adveeate for management by
abjective, In that context. resedarch, demonstration, and training must be viewed
ax investments designed to assure the production of serviees that are accountal.ie,
cost eflicient, of high quality, controllable. and responsive to need. We would
respectfully suggest thut the finaneing of Medicare and Medicaid prograius, sup-
plententary security income programs, Older Americians Act service programs,
nutrition programs, honsing programs, and others tlat impuet on the elderly
muet. he delivered hy skilled, trained professionals and paraprofessionals if
they are to achieve a degree of effectiveness that the Congress and the aduinis-
trstion has a right to expect, Furtiiermore, if we are to evaluate what we are
doing, if we are to make an imp.et on the major killers and disablers of the
olderly. if we are to evaluate the effectiveness of programs for the aging, we ra-
spectfully suggest that there must he programs and individuals available to train
and edneate those who will carry out the research. who will undertake the eval-
nation, and who will deliver the service.

Finally, we would like to suggest that no industry worth its salt would em-
hark on the major directions and enterprises that we have in the field of aging
without projecting personnel needs over a period of time and attempting to
tuke steps to assure that personnel would be available, Again. we recommend a

SN B
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review be made of the previous manpower aeed assessmelntts, conelusions reuached
about the estimated munpower needs for the next 15 years, and a clear. direct,
purposive, measur -hle strategy be developed and funded to assurc that the
elderly of 1980, 1985, and 1990 will be adequately served.

[Enclosurel

Wuy FEDERAIL SUPPORT FOR TRAINING IN GERoNTOLOGY SIoULD BE CONTINTED

BY THE EDUCATION COMMITTEE, GERONTOGLOGY SOCIETY

The education committee of the Gerontological Society meeting at the offices
of the society in Washington, D.C., on February 23, 1973, adopted the following
statement :

At the outset we need to distinguish between a statement of principle regard-
ing continned Federal support for training and the specific application of that
principle. For example, the current administration is said to have announced:
“No further support of training programs.”

A specific application of this principle to hiomedical research training appear-
ing in a HEW document argues, for example, that this particular type of train-
ing should be discontinued. for thie following reasons:

(1) The justification for biomedical research training in the first instance
was that a planned expansion of biomedical rescarch in the two previous decades
required expansion of trained manpower. Correspondingly, as the period of ex-
pansion of research activities has come to an end, the research training pro-
grams tied to this activity shonid come to an end.

(2) It follows that the law of supply and demand shionld regulate the number
of persons with advanced training in biomedical rescarch in the future.

(3) This is a reasonable assumption since income expectations for biomedical
research investigators are such that special financial incentives are unuecessary.

Now look at the general principle again. It asserts that special support of
training must be specificallv justified and its applieation to biomedical research
leads to the conclusion that further research training in biomedical disciplines
is unwarranted.

If one analyzed the case for training in geroatnlogy in the same way, would
the conclusion be the sume ?

Decidedly not. No authoritative manpower study has demonstrated that teie
number of persons e¢ngaged in gerontolos:cal resear:zh, training, and service is
adeqiate, On the contrary, experienced observers are unanimous In argming that
manpower in gerontological research, manpower for teaching gerontology at
every level in higher education, and trained service personnel in programs
serving the zlderly are in very short supply. These observers expect this shortage
t: continue in the absence of systematic, vigorous intervention.

This is the unequivocal conclusion reported in the technleal background papers
for the 1971 White House Corference on Aging and in the final report and
rcivmmendatons of that conference. For example, on page 97, volume IT, of
the final report of the White House Conferer-», the major theme of the sec-
tion on training is captured in this pastage: “The dclegates to the section on
training were well aware that if the policies and programs being proposed Ly
other conference sections were to be implemented, there sould be need for
the immediate recruitment and training of new personnel at all levcls * * *
and 2 significant increzse in the number of institutions offering training.”

This conclusion was reviewed by very knowledgeable and experienced people
in Government, higher education, and service in the post-conference review of
recommendations. Administration spokesmen have never publicly contested the
nced for additional manpow.r in gerontology or argued publicly that continued
investment in gerontological treining is unwarranted.

Gerontology has never experienced a period of substained, substantial, sys-
tematie Federal support such as that experienced b7 biomedical research and
related training. On the contrary, the 1971 White House Conference documents
demonstrate that support of gerontological research and trainiug has been
fragmented, shallow and underdeveloped. Thus, the conference - ecommendations
unequivocally called for increased Federal support for a variety of training pro-
grams in gerontology. When the post-conference board requested & response
from the administration to these recommendatioas, the recorded response in
December 1972, indicates that the adminiatration planned to increase its support
for both research and training In gerontology suhs tantially,
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Membes s 0t the equeation eommittee of tlie Gerontological Society continue
to assert categorieally that research wmuanpower in gerontology is inadeguaie:
thot the cadre of trained eachers at all ievels of higher educuanion is imade-
quaitely small; and that the mnuber of trained service personncel to meet demon-

CNtratong needs of elderly eitizens is inadequate,

Given the unchallenged testimony on training needs recorded in the recown-
mendations of the 1971 White House Conference, we I'eel thac the burden of
proui lies on those who assert that continued special investment in gerontologicil
training is not needed,

Consider further the case against training in biomedieal reseirch training as i
might apply to gerontology. The Law of supply and demand is expeeted to work
in the lirst instanee because biomedical researelr activities are an established
and integral activity in a large number of educetional and indusirial organizi-
tiohs, Furtiier, the prestige and econowmie incentives for careers in biomedical
reseitreh wre matters of common knowledge.

We assert that no informed person would argue that this characterization
of biomedical research activity can be-appropriately applied to gerontology.

When one considers that gerontology as an identiliable area ol substantiul
research, training, and service activity is hardly two deeades old, the strides
lforwurd have been cousiderable. But the tasks remain enormous and, i1. relation
to the task, manpower is demonstrably inadequate, Gerontology has increasingly
estublished itself in a small number of prestigeful institutions, but the effort
required to achieve this goul has been substantial. The eapacity of these beueb-
Lieands to survive without continued external support remains to be demonstrated.
Informed opinion would not lead one to be optimistie. Without external support,
there is a substantiai risk that the interdisciplinary research, training, and service
teams so painstakin y assembled at a few lovations in the United States will
be seriously weakened if not dismantled. In the long run, States inay assume, and
may reasonably be ¢ spected to assume, an inereasing share of the responsibility
for rescarch and training in gerontology. In the short run. a great deal of care
needs to be given to the achievement of a new balance of Federal and State sup-
port of training in gerontology if serious disruption is to be avoided.

The fact is that the clderly in this socicty continue to face cultural biases
witich favor the young rather than the old. Institutional barriers which militate
against the social integration of the elderly persist. These same attitudes and
institnironal barriers limit the attractiveness of gerontology as an interest which
comapetes effectively with alternative careers in other areas of research, training
and service.

The argument that the prestige s- d economic incentives which insure an ade-
quate flow of manpower to geror ,logy as well as to biomedieal research does
not apply. Reports at the 1971 White Ilouse Conference make this quite clear.
The burden of proof lies un the person who asserts otherwise.

The above argument does not necessarily lead one to r ect the principle that,
in general. Federal support for research training should be terminated. (ine
would however, want o add that partieular proposals for training in gerontology
require specific justifications and shonld be considered on their merit.

Any person informed about the current state of affairs in social service
agencies, nursing homes, and community mental heualth centers would be incred-
ulons if informed that there is no need for short-term and inservice training
of personnel who work with the elderly. As educators we believe that training
in gerontology makes a difference. We believe thiat training in gerontology has
had an impact on the quality and quantity of rescarch on human aging. We be-
lieve that training in gerontology has made a difference ia the quality and quan-
tity of service available to the clderly. We are not aware that anyone has pub-
licly advanced the argument that these beliefs are unwarranted. We are prepared
to accept a specific challenge to our conclusions. Qur considered opinion is thot
indiseriminate termination of Federal suppori for gerontological training will
have a disastrous effect not only on gerontological research but also on the quality
nf service provided for the elderly in this country. If the small number of train-
ing programs and cadrcs are weakened or dismantled, we are convinced that a
decad of reconstruction will be required to reestablish the potential for im-
proven service to the elderly that has been achieved in the past decade. If this
pessimistic conclusion is unwarranted. the proof that it is unwarranted should
be presented corvincingly. The consequences are too serious to allow assumptions
tn be submitied for evidence.
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Senator Cynnes. Dr. Donahue, we are delighted to have von with
us today.

We continually hear of your pioncering work in this field. and vour
canferences that are held at the University of Michigan.

Weare delighted to have yon appear before us.

STATEMENT OF WILMA DONAHUE, PH. D., DIRECTOR OF SYMPOSIA,
INTERNATIONAL CENTER FOR SOCIAL GERONTOLOGY, INC.

Dr. Doxanuve. Thank yvon very ntueh, Senator Chiles.
I found the morning an emotionally stimnlating one. in part be-
canse T believe that dr. Tlemming’s vision of a coordinated effort on
behalf of old people through some kind of interagency committee is
a very good one. I am also convineed that he has the particular ability
1oqmlod to malke such a plan operational and effective.

Tt seems te e then that not only shonid the plan proposed hy Dr.,
Flemming be initiated at once but thut the title V. (now titie TV. A
and C) tmmmfr program should be kept in place. The A dministration
cn Aging has dovoloped this program systematically to ensure that
in every part of the country there will he a continuing supply of
trained personnel in the high manpower need areas for the next sev-
eral